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Hereford Farms is a telescope house built over approximately the space of a century,
starting with the middie segment. The earliest portion was once believed to have been
built about 1714 by John Merryman "of Clover Hill", but 1737 might be a more likely date.
The center link is of stone, 13 stories, with a gambrii roof that once continued as «
porch roof. The front is four bays across. Tnree domiers are set in the east side of tie
upstairs roof. The porch, now fallen, had been supperted by four posts (with Victorian
scrolls). The west facade of the same section is ; bays, with only one roof dorme:.

A small, centered, erd chirney rises from the south wali.

The second element added to the house was the kitchen wing, four bays wide on the
east facade, 13 stories high with a gable roof. A lage square inside chimnzy is ceniered
at the south end of the kitchen. The south end wall is penefrated by one door at ground
level and by two squcre loft windows at the second, or attic, level. The west faccde of the
kitchen structure is two bays wide, with one dormer ot the roof level.

The third and fiaal section of the house is the i3 story mdin block, located on ihe
north end; this sectior is 3 bays wide on the east facade; thera had been a porch,
possibly a late additicn but now failen, along the en'ire width of the east facade., Tis
porch was supported by four posts decorated with Viciorian sciolls, The design of the main
block itself is a highlv simplified Federal., There ore two pedimented dermers on the cast
facade. The roof is gabled and there are overhanging eaves at the sides. Thereis a
box comice on the east. A chimney rises outside the south wall between the main black
and!the middle section. On the north there is an inside chimney, centrally located.

The porch of this block did not match the porch on tie center secticn .in. either height
or design.” On the west facade, the main block is two bays wide and there are two
dormers. At first story level on the west facade are gaping holes that once -housed a
window and a door.
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By 1973 or before, the house had lost its perch2s. Seepage, vandalism, and the
depredations of woodwork hunters have ruined most of the interior materials while the
house has stood untended. A large part of the roof fell in during the severe winter o
1976~77. The walls -emain, coated with stucco material, and could be reused in a
restoration of the house.

Dimensions were given as 36 by 36 in one wing and 20 x 73 in onother by the
1918 District 7 Tax Ledger, f. 671, when Hereford Farm was property of Mrs., Eliz. A.
Mays. A
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Hereford Farms is a Maryland Telescope House built in a number of steps with its c¢ldest
segment possibly datirg from the early 1700's when th: first of five generations of Merrymans
acquired the land. “he house has suffered from negle:t for thirteen or more years, but the
walls stand ond a nuriber of outbuildings survive in better condition than the mansicn.

The Merrymans, aspeared in the county fairly earl:s supposedly having migrated fror)
Virginia. Charles Marrymon patented Merryman's Lott in 1689 and Merryman's Pasture in 1705,
Listing himself as a carpenter in the deed, he gave irese properties’ to sons John and Sainuel
in 1714, These deecs were on both sides of Jones Fculs near present Umverslfy Parkway and
became the estate ca'led Clover Hill. BRI

John Merryman of Clover Hill acquired 102 acres in the upper county in 1738 frors Thomas
Bread and prompily deeded it fo son John, Jr. This second John Merryman, distinguished s
Junior or John of Hereford, acquired onother place cclled Merryman's Lot (100 acres) in tne
upper county under lcase in 1751,  That lot became part of a resurvey called "Hereford" in
1771 (854 acres). Ir. 1789, a second survey was mad: of all his properties "along "the Middle
Roud leading from Baitimore Town to York Town" under the title of "Hereford Resurveyed" ---
some 1,038-3/4 acres (Patents IC No., D, f. 397). "John Merryman Jr. also patented Meérrymen's
Mount in 1771 (Paterts' BC & GS No. 45:43). C e

The year 1714 -- obviously much too early - = i the date attributed fo John Merryman's
construction of the middle section of the present house; the beginning of the telescope house
was a 1% story stone dwelling, with gambril roof, somewhat similor to houses found in *idewater
areas.

John Merryman of Hereford (1703-1777) is credited with putting up the first stone bom,
- a spring house, and rieldstone slave quarters. He is buried along with his wife Sarah Rogers
Merryman (1708-1775) in o walled plot to the northecst of the house.

The third John Merryman (1736-1814) moved to Baltimore Town in 1763 and became active
in local aoffairs and had a hand in having Baltimore Town incorporated as a city. He married
Sarah Rogers Smith, widow of William Smith.

The 1798 tax list shows that the house was still a single section of stone, measuring 21
by 40 feet; separate kitchen was listed as sione, 22 x 26. This tax data undermines treditional

accounts th t th d
CONTINUE ON. §%%°£m%%hnsy§§?mf§ Yes-buiddsrof what is now called the kitcher. wing.
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me time in nistory that wing was added on the south, abuilding so plain that it could easily be
.-«en for - “lonial.

The -a of the third Johy Merryman and Sarch Rogers Sm'th Merrymon was Nicholas Roge s
Merryman, born in 1778. This Merryman returned to the farm ond is credited in fomily
tradition with building a 2% story portion that became the main block. This section has to past-
date the 1798 tax list and it bears certain characteristics of tne Federal period.

The next owner was Henry N. Merryman, son of Nicholcs R, Merryman and his second wvife,
Clarissa Philpot. This Merryman of the fifth generation pledged the property io Samuel George
of Harford County to secure an $11,000 mortgage in 1878. Some years later, Merrymon found
himself unable to repay the amount.

The morigage had passed to Mrs. Elizabeth A. Smith, and her trustee advertised the property
three times before finding a firm purchaser. The tract names mentioned in the trustee's advertisemens
in the Maryland Journal were: Hereford Resurveyed, Elezy's Grove, Merryman's Mount, ond lvy
Hills. The ad stated: .

This tract is one of the most valuable and productive
estates in Bcltimore County. The improvement: comprise
the Mansion F.ouse surrounded by a well shaded lawn,
stone bam, stone and frame stable, tenant house and other
outbuildings and on the tumpike a stone dwelling and
stable ond other outbuildings.

A second od included the notation: "There is also on the premises a valuable Iren Ore

Bank & Limestone Quarry." (Judiciai Records JWS 114:132, 141, and JWS 127:503.)
The trustee sold the property at $30 per acre or a total ¢<f $7,500, to G. Albert Mays.

Mays and his wife Eiizabeth A. Mays were newly moarried ond set cbout improving the
property, building a new bum and raising o family of six. Andrew Clemens interviewed a
number of Mays children for his 1973 paper on the house, and Mrs. Jackie Neays Johnson told
him of the social life of the times, around of parties and visits carried out by horse and
carriage. To quote from the Clemens study:

Hereford Farm life included the production of most of the

occupants’ fooc, hogs were butchered, crops planted and

harvested, wond cut, horses groomed for the state fair. Scheol

for the Mays children was held in the near-by quarters, conducted

by a schoolmoster who lived on the second floor of the small

stone house to the west of the main house. The servants and

field hands, many of whom came with Mrs. Mays in 18%0

from her father's home in Norrisville, also lived on the property.
. One of the field hand's houses can be seen today [1973] a one

room plaster and beam shack across the expressway.



CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM 8 Page 2

l;’}V,;’L -

Mr. Roche is believed to have been the first Baltimore County farmer to put in a crop o
soy beans, starting with a lot raised for feed in 1945,
beans for oil and Roch

seed beans.

~ Shortly before the sale cf the farm by the Roches in 1964, o fire took place in the thire
story of the main block and a large portion of the roof was destroyed.

Tales are still remembered of the times that tre Mays sons
brought home Indian relics from the woods boidering the
fields, of sledding aon the hill above Piney Hill Road in winter,
of the party ¢t which one young lady rode hei horse through
the Great Hall and jumped the fountain in the front yard

Mrs. Johnson also recalls here father's love for the old house,
how he kept the original finish on the paneled woodwork and
doors, trimmec the green lawns, planted the holly trees and
stocked the fountain with golden carp, some of which escoped
down stream in the spring to end up in the reservoir.

In 1926 ofter the death of Mr. Mays, the Heieford Farm was -
sold to William R. "Bill" Whittingham, o bacnelor whose

love of horses led him to issue an invitation to the Grand
National Steeslechase to use his valley as a course for the
April race. From 1935 until the onset of the Second World
War, the race was run on this course. '

Mr. Whittingkam in turn sold the house and 394 acres of
land to Mr. and Mrs. B. Hamilton Roche. Nr. Roche was
formerly with the University of Wisconsin and an expert in
dairy feeds. Under his ownership the Hereford Farm become
known for the experimental work in dairy feeds.

no longer inhabited, although the land has been farmed under lease.

The farm was the first to produce the
e sold the finished crop back to the same firm that had supplied him with

After that the house 'wvas
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